RESOLUTION 20-08-07

AUTHORIZING THE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOROUGH OF MATAWAN AND THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS (IBEW)

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2022

WHEREAS, the Borough of Matawan and the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) have completed negotiations toward the finalization of a new contract; and,

WHEREAS, both parties have reached an agreement for a three (3) year Agreement commencing January 1, 2020 and ending on December 31, 2022.

WHEREAS, the financial resources are available to implement the terms of the proposed negotiated agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the Borough of Matawan that it hereby accepts the terms and conditions of the attached Agreement between the Borough of Matawan and the International Brotherhood Of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Local 400, and that the Mayor be and is hereby authorized as signatory on behalf of the Borough of Matawan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a true certified copy of this Resolution shall be forwarded to the following Borough of Matawan Departments: Clerk, Finance, Payroll as well as Matawan IBEW Local 400.

CERTIFICATION AS TO AVAILABLE FUNDING

I, Nicole Horvath, Chief Financial Officer of the Borough of Matawan do hereby certify that as of the date of this certification funds are available from the Various Department's Budget (Salary & Wages) of the Borough of Matawan.

This certification is based solely on the information encumbered into the financial records of the Borough by the appropriate using division as of this date and relies on the completeness of financial records.

Chief Financial Officer

(Signature on File)

Nicole Horvath, CMFO
Dated: August 5, 2020

CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION

I, Karen Wynne, Municipal Clerk of the Borough of Matawan, County of Monmouth, and State of New Jersey, do hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of a Resolution adopted by the Council of the Borough of Matawan on August 5, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunder set my hand and official seal of the Borough of Matawan this 5^{th} day of August, 2020.

(Signature on File)	
Karen Wynne, RMC	
Municipal Clerk	

CONTRACT

INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS IBEW LOCAL 400

AND THE

BOROUGH OF MATAWAN

JANUARY 1, 2020 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	1
ARTICLE 2	COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCEDURE	2
ARTICLE 3	DUES CHECK-OFF	2
ARTICLE 4	CONDUCTING ASSOCIATION BUSINESS ON EMPLOYER'S TIME	3
ARTICLE 5	DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION	4
ARTICLE 6	INTRODUCTORY PERIOD	4
ARTICLE 7	SENIORITY	5
ARTICLE 8	WORK RULES	5
ARTICLE 9	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	5
ARTICLE 10	ARBITRATION	6
ARTICLE 11	HOURS OF WORK-SHIFTS	7
ARTICLE 12	OVERTIME	8
ARTICLE 13	HOLIDAY - PERSONAL LEAVE	9
ARTICLE 14	JURY DUTY	11
ARTICLE 15	BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	11
ARTICLE 16	VACATIONS	12
ARTICLE 17	SICK LEAVE	12
ARTICLE 18	ABSENTEEISM AND TARDINESS	14
ARTICLE 19	INSURANCE	14
ARTICLE 20	RETIREMENT BENEFIT	15
ARTICLE 21	UNIFORM ALLOWANCE	16
ARTICLE 22	SALARIES AND PREMIUMS	17
ARTICLE 23	LONGEVITY	19
ARTICLE 24	PORTER	19
ARTICLE 25	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	20
ARTICLE 26	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	21
ARTICLE 27	MISCELLANEOUS	21
ARTICLE 28	FURTHER NEGOTIATIONS	23
ARTICLE 29	DURATION OF CONTRACT	23
ADTICLE 30	SAVINGS CLAUSE	24

{00539366.DOC}

2

THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of January, 2020 by and between The Borough of Matawan, a municipality in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, hereinafter called the "Employer" and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local Union #400 hereinafter called the "Union."

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, it is the intent and purpose of the parties hereto to promote and improve the harmonious and economic relations between the Employer and its employees, to establish a basis understanding relative to rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment consistent with the law and established practices not modified by this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these promises and mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto do agree with each other with respect to the employees of the Employer recognized as being represented by the Union as follows:

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

Section 1:

This Agreement shall take effect January 1, 2020 and shall remain in effect until December 31, 2022, unless otherwise specifically provided for herein. It shall continue in effect from year to year thereafter, from January 1, through December 31 of each year, unless changed or terminated in the way later provided herein.

Section 2:

- (a) Either party desiring to change or terminate this Agreement must notify the other, in writing, at least ninety (90) days prior to the anniversary date.
- (b) The existing provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until a conclusion is reached in the matter of the proposed changes.

Section 3:

The Employer hereby authorizes the Union as the sole and exclusive representative of all the employees of the bargaining unit as defined in Article I, Section IV herein for the purposes of collective bargaining and all activities and processes relevant thereto.

Section 4:

The bargaining unit shall consist of all blue collar permanent employees of the Borough of Matawan, excluding managerial executives, professional employees, craft

{00539366.DOC}

employees, supervisors within the meaning of the New Jersey Employer Employee Relations Act, policemen, white collar employees, confidential's and crossing guards. The parties recognize that there may be disputes concerning certain titles being included or excluded from the bargaining unit. Neither party waives or restricts its right to seek and obtain a clarification from the Public Employment Relations Commission ("PERC") of said titles.

Section 5:

This Agreement shall govern all wages, hours and other conditions of employment herein set forth.

Section 6:

This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto.

ARTICLE 2 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCEDURE

Section 1:

Collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment shall be conducted by the duly authorized bargaining agent of each of the parties. Unless otherwise designated, the Mayor of the Employer or his designees and the Chairman of the Union unit or his designees shall be the respective bargaining agent for the parties.

Section 2:

Collective bargaining meetings shall be held at times and places mutually convenient at the request of either party.

ARTICLE 3 DUES CHECK-OFF

Section 1:

It is agreed pursuant to the "New Jersey Employer-Employee Relations Act" as amended, that all non-members of the Union shall pay to the Union a representation fee in lieu of dues for services rendered by the Union in the amount equivalent to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessment charged by the Union to its own members, less the cost of benefits financed through dues, fees and assessments and available to or benefiting only its members.

Section 2:

The Borough shall deduct employees' Union dues or representation fee based on Chapter 233 Laws of 1969 from employees' salary authorizing the same in writing under the following conditions:

- A. Upon receipt of duly signed authorization, the Borough shall deduct membership dues and remit the dues deducted as directed on the Authorization Card.
- B. The amount of monthly dues will be certified in writing by the Union and the amount shall be uniform for all members.
- C. No deduction will be made for any month in which there is insufficient pay available to cover same after all other deductions required by law have been made. They shall be deducted when pay is sufficient, in any payroll week, or payment of dues may be made by personal check to the Union if pay is not sufficient.
- D. Dues deducted from employees' pay will be transmitted by check as directed as soon as practicable after the deductions have been made.
- E. A new dues deduction Authorization Card will automatically cancel any prior deduction authorization on file with the Borough.
- F. The Union shall indemnify the Borough and any Department of the Borough and hold it harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability that may arise out of, or by reason of, any action taken by the Borough or any Department of the Borough for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE 4 CONDUCTING ASSOCIATION BUSINESS ON EMPLOYER'S TIME

SECTION 1:

The Employer shall permit a member of the Union Grievance committee to conduct the business of the Committee, which consists of conferring with the employees and management on specific grievances in accordance with the Grievance Procedure set forth herein. The grievance Committee member will be granted reasonable time to a limit of one (1) hour during duty hours without loss of pay and with prior approval of his department head or designee, and providing the conduct of said business shall not diminish the effectiveness of his department or require the recall of any other employees to bring that department to its proper effectiveness. Said time off may only be granted after the grievance has been formally presented in writing.

Section 2:

The Employer shall permit members of the Union Negotiating Committee to attend collective bargaining meetings during the duty hours of the member. However, when practicable, the negotiations session will be set during off-duty hours.

ARTICLE 5 DISCRIMINATION AND COERCION

Section 1:

There shall be no discrimination, interference or coercion by the Employer of any of its agents against the employees represented by the Union because of membership or activity in the Union. The Union shall not intimidate or coerce employees into membership. Neither the Employer nor the Union shall discriminate against any employee because of race, creed, color, sex, national origin or political affiliation.

Section 2:

Where the word "he" is used in this Agreement, it shall mean both sexes.

ARTICLE 6 INTRODUCTORY PERIOD

Section 1. New Employees

Each new employee shall serve an introductory period of ninety (90) calendar days. At the completion of thirty (30) and sixty (60) days, the employee's department head shall prepare a performance report and recommend the retention or dismissal of the introductory employee. These reports shall be submitted to the departmental Committee Chairperson.

If at the end of ninety (90) calendar days, the introductory employee shall have been deemed to have successfully completed his introductory period by the department head and the Committee Chairperson, the employee shall be granted all rights and privileges pertaining to his employment or position.

If, however, at the conclusion of the introductory period, the employee has been deemed to not have successfully completed the introductory period, the employee shall be dismissed. Nothing contained in this article shall be construed to prohibit the suspension or dismissal of an introductory employee at any time. At the time of dismissal the Borough Administrator and/or to Department Head will meet informally with the Business Agent, Shop Steward, and introductory employee to discuss the Boroughs decision related to dismissal. The dismissal of an introductory employee shall not be applicable to the grievance procedure. Except as otherwise provided by applicable law, the existence of an introductory period or the completion of the

introductory period does not alter an employee's at-will employment relationship with the Borough.

ARTICLE 7 SENIORITY

Section 1. Definition of Seniority

Seniority shall, for purposes of this Agreement, be defined as an employee's length of continuous full-time service since their last date of hire, less any adjustments due to lay-off, approved leaves of absence without pay (unless otherwise agreed by the Borough), or other breaks in service. Seniority will not accrue when an employee is off the job due to a strike or other form of work stoppage. In the event of a reduction in work force, least senior employees will be terminated or laid off first.

ARTICLE 8 WORK RULES

Section 1:

The Borough may prepare, issue and enforce rules and safety regulations necessary for safe, orderly and efficient operation.

ARTICLE 9 GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

Section 1:

- A grievance is a claimed breach, misinterpretation or improper application of the terms of this Agreement; or
- A claimed violation, misinterpretation, or misapplication of rules or regulations, existing policy, or orders applicable to the Department.

Section 2:

If, at any step in the grievance procedure, Management's decision is not appealed within the appropriate time, such grievance will be considered closed and there shall be no further appeal or review.

GRIEVANCE STEPS Section III:

Step 1. The Business Agent of the Union or his duly authorized and designated representative within fifteen (15) working days of becoming aware of a grievance circumstance shall present in writing the grievance or grievances to the department head or his designee. The department head or his designee shall answer the grievance

in writing within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the grievance. Any of the time frames listed in the Grievance Steps may be extended by written agreement of both parties.

Step 2. If the grievance is not resolved at Step 1, or if no answer has been received by the Union within the time set forth in Step 1, the Union shall present the grievance or grievances in writing to the Borough Council within ten (10) working days of receipt of the Step 1 answer. This presentation shall set forth the position of the Union, and at the request of either party, discussion may ensue. The Borough Council shall answer the grievance in writing within twenty-one calendar (21) days after receipt of the grievance setting forth the position of the Employer.

Step 3. If the grievance has not been settled by the parties by Step 2 of the grievance procedure or if no answer in writing by the Mayor and Borough council has been received by the Union within the time provided in Step 2, the Union may demand arbitration of the grievance within thirty calendar (30) days as set forth in Article 10, "Arbitration," hereinafter set forth.

Section 4:

Nothing herein is intended to deny any employee the right of appeal as expressly granted in Title 40A of the revised New Jersey Statutes.

ARTICLE 10 ARBITRATION

Section 1:

If the grievance is not settled under Article 9, such grievance shall, at the request of the Union or the Employer, be referred to the State Board of Mediation for selection of an Arbitrator according to its rules. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding. It is understood between both parties that the failure to conclude contract negotiations shall not be a matter subject to the grievance procedure. Binding arbitration shall not apply to the contract negotiation's process.

Section 2:

All submissions to arbitration must be made within thirty calendar (30)

days. Section 3:

The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from or modify the provisions of this Agreement or laws of the State. He shall confine himself to the precise issue submitted for arbitration and shall have no authority to determine any other issues not so submitted to him, nor shall he submit observations or declarations or opinions that are not relevant in reaching the determination. The decision or award of the arbitrator shall be binding and consistent with applicable law and this Agreement. In no event shall the same question or issue be the subject of arbitration more than once.

The arbitrator may prescribe an appropriate back pay remedy when he finds a violation of this Agreement, provided such remedy is permitted by law and is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall have no authority to prescribe a monetary award as a penalty for a violation of this Agreement. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator and recording of the procedure shall be divided equally between the parties. Any other cost of this proceeding shall be borne by the party incurring the cost.

ARTICLE 11 HOURS OF WORK-SHIFTS

Section 1 - Normal Work Day:

The normal work day for all employees shall be eight (8) hours work between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m., with thirty (30) minutes for lunch period between 12:00 noon and 1:00 p.m. Five (5) such days, Monday through Friday, shall constitute a forty (40) hour week.

Section 2 - Building and Grounds:

The exception to the previously outlined work day shall be second shift work as assigned for Building and Grounds personnel at Borough owned properties. The work day for employees performing second shift services shall be eight (8) hours work between the hours of 3:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m., with thirty (30) minutes for lunch period between 8:00 p.m. and 9:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, constituting a forty (40) hour week.

Section 3 - Water Department:

A further exception to the previously outlined work day shall be an altered work week for the Water Department personnel at the Borough water plant.

A five (5) day workweek shall only be worked during the time that the Matawan Borough water treatment facility is operational. The workweek shall be established as follows.

- 3.1. Water department employees shall work eight (8) hours daily between the hours of 7:00 AM and 3:00 PM. Lunch periods shall be thirty (30) minutes between 12:00 PM and 1:00 PM Monday through Friday. This shall constitute a forty (40) hour workweek.
- 3.2. One (1) employee of the water department shall work the same hours except that the workweek shall be Tuesday through Saturday constituting a forty (40) hour workweek.
- 3.3. The scheduling of the personnel to the different work weeks shall be determined by the employees, their immediate supervisor and in consultation with the Borough Administrator.

All other terms of this contract shall remain in effect during the operation of the five (5) day week.

Section 4:

All work performed outside of the stated hours and the first eight hours on Saturday will be paid at time and one-half of the regular straight time rate. Sundays and holidays as prescribed in Article 13, or days celebrated as such shall be paid at double the straight time rate.

Section 5:

If it becomes necessary to work an additional shift, in addition to the employee's regular hours, Monday through Friday, the first eight hours of each of the five (5) days shall be at the, straight time rate. Any work performed outside of these hours shall be paid at the overtime rate. An additional shift shall consist of five consecutive days at eight hours per day.

Section 6:

A lunch period of thirty (30) minutes shall be allowed on each eight hour work day.

Section 7:

All overtime work required after the completion of an employee's regular shift shall be paid in keeping with the terms and conditions outlined in Article 12 of this Agreement.

Section 8:

There shall be no pyramiding of overtime rates and double the straight time rate shall be the maximum compensation for any hour worked.

ARTICLE 12 OVERTIME

Section 1:

An employee shall be entitled to overtime at the rate of one and one-half (1¹/₂) times his regular rate only after said employee has worked eight hours any given work day or forty (40) hours in any given work week. Vacation and holidays are to be considered time worked in the above matter.

Section 2:

No employee shall work in excess of his prescribed work day unless said overtime is authorized by his department head or designee. Overtime will be distributed

by the department head or his designee and will be distributed equally among the members covered by this Agreement. All personnel who are properly trained are required to be on the overtime rotation. The department head shall provide the Shop Steward with a listing of overtime distribution for the previous pay cycle within ten (10) days of the distribution of payroll.

Section 3:

Except as otherwise provided in Article 11, any work performed in excess of eight hours on Saturday shall be at the rate of double time. Sundays and holidays shall be paid at the rate of double time. These overtime rates shall apply to any work performed outside the regularly scheduled shift.

Section 4:

In the event that any employee is called to duty on what is normally his off-duty hours, he shall be paid overtime at the rate herein prescribed, for a minimum of four (4) hours.

Section 5:

Where possible and except in the case of emergency, a two (2) hour notification period should be given to an employee prior to his working overtime.

Section 6:

Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to a meal, paid for by the Borough of Matawan, when they work ten (10) continuous hours through two meals. Employees shall submit a voucher and a copy of the bill as proof of payment.

Section 7:

The above shall be subject, however, to any state or federal law or regulation which may now or in the future be enacted to the contrary.

ARTICLE 13 HOLIDAY - PERSONAL LEAVE

Section 1:

Each employee covered by this Agreement shall receive the following holidays:

- New Year's Eve (one-half day)
- 2. New Year's Day
- 3. Martin Luther King Day
- President's Day
- Good Friday
- 6. Memorial Day

- 7. Fourth of July
- 8. Thanksgiving Day
- 9. The day after Thanksgiving Day
- 10. Labor Day
- 11. Columbus Day
- 12. Election Day
- 13. Veteran's Day
- 14. Christmas Eve (one-half day)
- 15. Christmas Day

Section 2: Payment for Holidays:

The above mentioned holidays shall be included in the employee's regular pay period.

Section 3: Observance of Holidays that fall on Saturday or Sunday:

Holidays which fall on Saturday will be observed the day before on Friday, and holidays which fall on Sunday will be observed the day after on Monday.

In regard to the one half day holiday allocated for the day before Christmas and New Years Eve; when either of these holidays falls on a Saturday, the half-day prior shall be recognized as Thursday. When either of these holidays falls on Sunday, the half-day prior shall be recognized as Friday.

Section 4: Personal Leave

Employees covered by this Agreement shall be entitled to five days personal leave each year.

Section 5:

Military Leave:

- Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal law.
- B. Persons covered by this provision: Any full-time employee who is a member of the National Guard, International Guard or a reserve component of any of the Armed Forces of the United States and is required to engage in an annual field training as is authorized by law.
- C. It will be the employee's responsibility to obtain a statement from his/her commanding officer certifying the amount of compensation he/she received while in military service. If the employee's military pay for the training is less than his/her gross base earnings for a like period the Borough will pay the difference to the employee for a period not exceeding

15 consecutive calendar days of training. Such leave of absence shall be in addition to authorized vacation. Any military training in excess of the two weeks annual field training shall be scheduled on the employee's non-duty time.

ARTICLE 14 JURY DUTY

Section 1: Attendance in Court

An employee will be granted jury duty leave with pay and should inquire about the duration of the jury trial. Employees shall advise their supervisor within two business days after receipt of notification to appear for jury duty.

- A. The employees will receive their regular wages. When they have completed their jury day prior to 12:00 noon, they are expected to return to work. When an employee fails to return to work, after the completion of jury duty, the time not spent at work will be considered use of personal time.
- B. Although the employees will receive their entire pay, the time slip must be submitted to the Clerk's office. The nominal fees an individual receives for jury duty are recognized as being paid to cover travel expenses and are not reimbursable to the Borough.

Witness Duty Leave of Absence

The Borough is aware that employees may be subpoenaed to appear as witnesses in trials before the court. For personal matters, employees will use available personal or vacation days.

ARTICLE 15 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Section I:

Each employee shall be granted four (4) days leave with pay upon death of a member of his immediate family. A fifth day may be granted by the Committee Chairperson if needed. Immediate family shall be defined as father, mother, sister, brother, husband, wife, daughter, son, father-in-law, mother-in-law, grandparents of employee and spouse, or relative living under the same roof. Employees shall be granted two days off with pay to attend the funeral of any other relative as approved by the Committee Chairperson.

ARTICLE 16 VACATIONS

Section 1:

Each employee hired prior to January 1, 1997 who has had the length of continuous employment specified in the table following shall be entitled to the working time shown as vacation with pay at his regular rate of pay.

Section 2:

Eligibility for vacation shall be computed as of the first day of the month in which the individual employee was hired. Vacation time shall not be cumulative from year to year. However, the Borough recognizes the need might arise for an individual to carry over a given amount of vacation time from one year to the next. The Employer shall grant any individual employee an opportunity to appear before the Borough Council with a special request for the carry-over of a maximum of one (1) year's vacation under specific individual circumstances. The Borough Council reserves the right to either approve or deny the request based solely upon the Council's discretion.

No employee shall lose vacation time by virtue of being required to work during his or her scheduled vacation. All requests for vacation or leave of absence shall be acted and decided upon within fifteen (15) days and all vacation time must be approved in advance by the Superintendent of Public Works and the Borough Administrator. Requests for vacation will not be unreasonably denied.

ARTICLE 17 SICK LEAVE

Section 1:

Sick days may be utilized by full-time employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease.

Section 2:

- A. Accumulated sick days may be used by an employee for personal illness, illness in his "immediate family", which requires his attendance upon the ill person, quarantine restrictions, pregnancy, or disabling injuries. "Immediate family" means spouse, child, parent or unmarried brother or sister, or dependent living under the same roof. In the first year of employment, an employee shall be entitled to one sick day for each month of employment. Thereafter, sick days shall accumulate on the basis of one and one-quarter (1¹/4) days per month or fifteen (15) days per year; sick days may be accumulated from year to year, but not to exceed 260 days of earned sick days.
- B. Unused accumulated sick days shall be dealt with in accordance with Borough ordinance in effect on January 1, 1987 and amended March 4, 1997, copies of which are attached and made part of this Agreement.
- C. In connection with any application for sick leave of absence pursuant to this Section, the duration of any claimed disability shall be evidenced by certificates of a physician designated by the Mayor and Council to examine the applicant.

Section 3:

- A. If an employee is absent for reasons that entitle him to use of sick days, he shall notify his supervisor no later than one (1) hour prior to his usual reporting time.
- B. Failure to notify his supervisor may be cause for denial of the use of sick days for that absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action.
- C. Absence without notice for five (5) consecutive days shall constitute a resignation.

Section 4:

- A. An employee who has been absent using sick days for five (5) or more consecutive working days shall be required to submit acceptable medical evidence substantiating the illness.
- B. An employee who has been absent using sick days totaling ten (10) days in one (1) calendar year shall submit acceptable medical evidence for the use of any additional sick days in that year unless such illness is of a chronic or recurring nature requiring absences of one (1) day or less, in which case only one (1) certificate shall be necessary for a period of six (6) months.

- C. The employee's department head may require proof of illness of an employee's use of sick days whenever such requirement appears reasonable.
- D. In case of sick leave of absence due to exposure to contagious disease, a certificate from the Department of Health shall be required.
- E. The department head may require an employee who has been absent because of personal illness, as a condition of his return to duty, to be examined, at the expense of the Borough of Matawan, by a physician designated by the Committee. Such examination shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing his normal duties and that his return will not jeopardize the health and safety of other employees.
- F. Abuse of sick days shall be cause for disciplinary action.

ARTICLE 18 ABSENTEEISM AND TARDINESS

Regular attendance at work, reporting on time, and completing the required hours of work are necessary for each employee so that the Borough may meet its commitments. The Borough recognizes that circumstances beyond the employee's control may cause him or her to be absent from work for all or part of a day. The Borough, however, will not tolerate unexcused absence or tardiness.

All employees are expected to come to work regularly and on time, and notify their supervisors when they are unable to do so. Attendance and punctuality will be considered, among other factors, in the employees performance review.

ARTICLE 19 INSURANCE

Section 1:

The Borough shall secure accident and liability insurance for all employees to provide a defense for all actions brought against an employee by a third party as a result of Borough employment. The Borough will not indemnify any employee for punitive or compensatory damages, attorney fees or other expenses incurred by reason of the commission of a criminal act or an intentional tort by an employee.

Section 2: Hospitalization, Medical, Surgical Coverage and Life Insurance

Qualifying Employees and their dependents shall be provided medical, dental and prescription insurance through the State Health Benefits Plan ("SHBP") or the equivalent. All employees shall contribute to their health benefits in accordance with Chapter 78, P.L. 2011.

The Employer reserves the right to change insurance carriers or implement a self-insurance program so long as substantially similar benefits are provided. The Borough will provide the Union Shop Steward with a written notice 45 days in advance of the implementation of the new program.

Section 3: Eye Care

The Borough shall assume the cost of providing each employee with an eye examination, at an optometrist selected by the Borough, once every twenty-four months. The Borough shall grant each employee an allowance of \$400.00 toward the cost of one pair of prescription glasses in each twenty-four month period, one half of the members of the bargaining unit shall be eligible for this benefit in each calendar year of this Agreement. The Borough shall not be required to pay for more than one eye examination or pay more than one eyeglass allowance for any employee in any twenty-four month period.

Section 4: Worker's Compensation Insurance

The Employer shall maintain in full force and effect, Worker's Compensation Insurance for all employees covered by this Agreement.

ARTICLE 20 RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Section 1:

It is agreed that, at the time of retirement, the Borough will purchase back accumulated unused sick days for any employee covered by this Agreement up to a maximum of 260 days at half pay for a maximum of \$15,000.00.

Section 2:

The Borough shall continue to provide paid health care, dental, eyeglass, prescriptive drug plan insurance benefits to retired employees of the Borough, and their spouses, who were on the payroll prior to January 1, 1999. Employees hired after January 1, 1999, will receive paid medical retiree benefits, but spousal and dependent coverage shall be available only upon the purchase of the premium charged for such coverage. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2010 will receive paid medical retiree benefits after twenty-five (25) continuous years of full-time service in good standing with the Borough. Spousal and dependent coverage shall be available only upon the purchase of the premium charged for such coverage. Benefits will be provided subject to the requirements of Ch. 78, PL 2011. Employees with twenty (20) years of service with the Borough as of the effective date of Ch. 78, PL 2011 (June 28, 2011) will not be required to contribute for such benefits upon his/her retirement.

Section 3:

Retired employees entitled to medical insurance benefits described in Section 2, as per past practice, are required to enroll in Medicare upon reaching age 65 and will be responsible for any premium costs associated with Medicare coverage. The Borough coverage will become secondary to Medicare upon a retired employee reaching age 65. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2010 shall be removed from Borough health benefits upon reaching the age of sixty-five (65) and qualifying for Medicare coverage.

ARTICLE 21 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

Section 1:

The annual uniform allowance shall be paid no later than January 31st of each year as follows:

2020-\$1,100

2021-\$1,100

2022-\$1,100

Said allowance shall be used to purchase articles of clothing specified as required attire by the department head. The uniform for personnel covered by the provisions of this contract shall be:

Assistant Foreman:

Pants:

Blue Jeans or Mechanic dark blue uniform pants

Shirts:

Blue and White long and short sleeve Striped Shirts (MATAWAN

sewn on left side in white)

T- shirts:

Dark Blue (MATAWAN) sewn on left side in white)

Jacket:

Brown Carhart type, Dark Blue Windbreaker, Dark Blue Hooded

Sweat Jacket

Field Technician:

Pants:

Blue Jeans or Mechanic dark blue uniform pants

Shirts:

Light Blue, long and short sleeve shirts (MATAWAN sewn on left

side in white)

T-shirts

Light Blue (MATAWAN sewn on left side in white)

Jacket:

Brown Carhart type, Dark Blue Windbreaker, Dark Blue Hooded

Sweat-Jacket

Mechanic:

Pants:

Black Mechanic pants

Shirts:

Black long and short sleeve Shirts (MATAWAN sewn over left

pocket in white)

T-shirts:

Black shirts (MATAWAN sewn over left side in white)

Jacket:

Brown Carhart type, Dark Blue Windbreaker, Dark Blue Hooded

Sweat-jacket

Section 2:

All short and long sleeve shirts, including T-shirts, hooded sweatshirts, denim shirts and jackets must be purchased by the Borough authorized printer. Items must be engraved with the employee's name <u>and rank is optional</u> and the name of the Borough. Pants must be jeans, boots must be steel-tipped at DPW choice. All blue collar employees shall be required to wear their uniforms while on duty. Employees who fail to report to work in the required uniform will be sent home for the day without pay.

Section 3:

Employees shall be authorized time to pick up uniform clothing as scheduled by the Department Head from vendors selected by the Department Head. The Borough will pay for the cost of patches and any embroidery required as part of the articles of the uniform.

ARTICLE 22 SALARIES AND PREMIUMS

Section 1:

Salary increases shall be as follows:

Effective January 1, 2020 - 0%

Effective January 1, 2021 - 1.5%

Effective January 1, 2022 - 1.5%

Employees' salaries are attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A:

1.1 Base Pay Salary Guide see Exhibit A

Section 2:

Premium Payments:

It is understood that premium payments are described as lump sum amounts and are not to be considered part of an employee's gross base for the calculation of longevity. The first payment (one half of the total premium amount) shall be made in the July 30th payroll. The second shall be paid in the December 30th payroll.

Phone Carry Premium:

The Borough agrees to pay annual premiums to employees designated to carry phones in the amount of \$1,000.00.

Boiler Operator Premium:

The Borough agrees to pay a \$1,000.00 annual premium to an individual licensed, or capable of providing services in keeping with requirements established by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Workplace Standards, Office of Boiler and Pressure Vessel Compliance and outlined in N.T.A.C. 12:90 for low pressure boiler operation.

It is understood and agreed that one Assistant Foreman is currently providing Boiler operator coverage at no additional compensation. That individual will continue to serve as a Boiler Operator at no additional compensation with the understanding that he will maintain his title of Assistant Foreman and continue to be compensated at the Assistant Foreman rate.

Mason Premium:

The Borough agrees to pay a \$3,000.00 annual premium to one individual designated by the department head to provide masonry services as required.

Carpenter Premium:

The Borough agrees to pay a \$3,000.00 annual premium to one individual designated by the department head to provide carpentry services as required.

Section 3:

Commercial Drivers License (CDL):

All employees shall be responsible for obtaining a State of New Jersey Commercial Drivers License (CDL) no later than the expiration of their introductory period.

The Borough will reimburse each employee for the cost and renewal of the license and the fee related to applying for the license, but exclusive of any training or school costs. In order to receive this reimbursement the employee shall provide the department head with a copy of a currently valid CDL issued in his name. The department head shall be responsible for preparing the appropriate requisition for reimbursement.

The Borough will provide employees taking the road exam with a municipal vehicle for that purpose.

CDL License oes not apply to Porter Position.

ARTICLE 23 LONGEVITY

Section 1:

Current Porter Only covered by this Agreement shall be paid, in addition to his annual wage, a longevity increment based upon his years of employment with the Borough of Matawan in the sum of two and one-half percent $(2^1/2\%)$ per each five years of service to a maximum of ten percent (10%). (Example: Longevity payments will increase by $2^1/2\%$ at the beginning of his or her sixth, eleventh, sixteenth and twenty-first year of continuous service). In no case shall a longevity payment exceed Five Thousand Five Hundred \$5,500 dollars.

Notwithstanding the above, no employee hired on or after January 1, 2017 shall be entitled to any longevity payments.

Section 2:

Effective January 1, 1997 each employee shall qualify for the longevity increment on January 1st and July 1st of the respective year of the anniversary of his employment and such increment shall be paid from and after said date. (Example: An employee with an anniversary date of March 30, 2000 would begin receiving longevity January 1, 2000. An employee with an anniversary date of October 30, 2001 would begin receiving longevity July 2000).

ARTICLE 24 PORTER

Section 1. Porter

1.1 Responsible for up keep of the Municipal Building and the Police Station.

Section 1.2 Work Hours

Will follow the same hours as are in place under Article 11 Section 1 and 2.

Section 1.3 Advancement

Will be allowed to move up within the DPW if position becomes available prior to it going out to the public, as long as he is qualified for the position.

Section 1.4 DPW Work

At no time may a Porter be used outside of the building to assist the DPW with their normal duties.

Section 1.5 Pay

See Base Pay Step Salary Guide see Exhibit A.

ARTICLE 25 EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Section 1:

Any employee shall have the right to have a Union representative accompanying him in all disciplinary procedures filed against him by his department head or the Borough.

Section 2

All disciplinary proceedings filed against any employee by his department head or the Borough shall only be for just cause. Disciplinary proceedings shall be subject to the Grievance Procedure.

Section 3:

A. <u>Disciplinary Actions Enumerated.</u> An employee who has acquired permanent status may be disciplined for any of the following actions, which are stated in order of severity, for the causes stated in this Section by a department head or the Borough Council, except that no employee shall be suspended or dismissed without the approval of the Borough Council.

Disciplinary action will follow steps 1, 2, 3, and 4 below, in order, except for good cause and as such exists.

- 1. Informal, verbal reproof.
- 2. Written reproof.
- 3. Suspension from duty.
- Dismissal.

Section 4:

An employee shall have the right to review his personnel folder. All requests for review shall be submitted in writing to his department head and, will be honored within three (3) working days. All materials contained in the individual's personnel folder will be open to examination by the employee and his immediate supervisor only, except such material which, by legislation, is considered to be of a confidential nature and not to be released to the Employer.

Section 5:

An employee shall be provided with a copy of a specific rule or regulation related to the operation of his department or additions, deletions or amendments of the Borough's Policies and Procedures Manual.

ARTICLE 26 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Section 1:

The Mayor and Council have the sole authority to determine the purpose and mission of the Borough and the amount of budget to be adopted thereto.

Section 2

The authority and powers of the governing body of the Borough of Matawan as prescribed by State statute shall supersede and take precedent over any provisions of this Agreement, where applicable.

Section 3:

- A. The Borough may establish and enforce reasonable rules, regulations, policies and procedures which do not conflict with this Agreement, regulations for department operations, conduct of personnel thereof and maintenance of discipline. Copies of such rules and regulations, policies and procedures shall be furnished to the employees, Union and shop stewards.
- B. The employees shall comply with such rules and regulations and all employees shall promptly and efficiently execute the instructions and orders of their superiors. If an employee or the employee's Union believes an instruction or order of a superior. is unreasonable or unjust, the employee shall comply with the order or instruction but may treat the order or instruction as a grievance which should be handled in accordance with the Grievance Procedure set forth in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 27 MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1: Training

All employees are required to be cross-trained in each department. When formal training or a license is required, it shall be at the Borough's expense.

Section 2: Bulletin Board

Two (2) bulletin boards will be made available to employees and the Union for the purpose of posting Union matters relating to meetings, dues, entertainment, health, safety and welfare or general Union and employee activities. Union members shall not post any profane or obscene materials or be defamatory towards any individual.

Section 3: Education

The Borough shall pay for educational courses for any employee covered by this Agreement in advance, who pursues a course to better their education for the benefit of the Borough of Matawan, which must be approved in writing by the Department Head and Administrator prior to enrollment.

Notwithstanding the above, in the event the employee fails the necessary course, they will agree to reimburse the Borough for the tuition fee in equal payments over six (6) months which said amount shall be automatically deducted from the employee's paycheck.

Section 4: Medical Examinations

In the interest of public and employee safety, the Borough may require an employee to undergo a physical examination to be performed by a doctor(s) of the Borough's choice. When the appointment for such examination is during an employee's regularly scheduled work hours, he/she will receive straight time compensation for those hours. The cost of said examination will be borne by the Borough. The results of said examination shall be furnished to an employee upon his/her request.

Section 5: Notices

Notices hereunder shall be deemed to have been adequately given if served by registered mail, return receipt requested, upon the persons named below and the address indicated, unless otherwise notified in writing:

NOTICE TO THE UNION SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

Business Agent International Brotherhood or Electrical Workers, Local 400 Highway 138 P.O. Box 1256 Wall, N.J. 07719

NOTICE TO THE BOROUGH SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

Office of the Business Administrator Borough of Matawan 201 Broad Street P.O. Box 424 Matawan, N.J. 07747

Section 6: Employee Notice to Employer

Employees shall notify the Borough Clerk immediately of any changes in address, telephone number, marital status, exemption claims for withholding tax or record of

immediate family including but not limited to the status of dependents as it pertains to school attendance, as it would apply to insurance coverage.

Section 7: Telephone

All employees shall be required, as a condition of continued employment beyond the introductory period (or within six months of the signing of this Agreement for an existing employee) to advise the Borough Clerk of their telephone number and any changes of that number within three (3) days of the change.

Section 8: Protective Clothing and Devices

If an employee is required to wear protective clothing, or any type of protective device as a condition of employment, such protective clothing or protective device shall be furnished to the employee by the Borough. The cost of repairing and maintaining the protective clothing and protective devices in proper working condition including dry cleaning and laundering) shall be paid by the Borough. For purposes of this Section, protective clothing and protective device shall mean those items which are required, as determined by the Borough to protect employees form existing or potential safety hazards.

Section 9: Performance Evaluations

Beginning the first half of 1997, all employees will be evaluated by their Department Head every six months. Evaluations will be documented and filed in each employee's personnel file. Additional information regarding the Performance Evaluation can be found in the Borough of Matawan Personnel Policies and Procedure Manual previously issued to all employees.

Section 9: Subcontracting

The Borough reserves the right to contract out any work it deems necessary in the interests of efficiency, economy, improved work product or emergency.

ARTICLE 28 FURTHER NEGOTIATIONS

Section 1:

During the month of November, 2022, at the request of either party a meeting may be called at a mutually agreed time and place for the purpose of effecting, if possible a new or continuation of the within Agreement, commencing the first day of January, 2023. This condition shall not prohibit either of the parties from requesting that the negotiating process begin earlier than the month of October.

ARTICLE 29 DURATION OF CONTRACT

Section 1:

This contract is retroactive to January 1, 2020 and extends to December 31, 2022. In the event that a new contract is not in place at the time this Agreement expires, the terms and conditions of this contract shall continue until such time that a new Agreement is executed.

ARTICLE 30 SAVINGS CLAUSE

Should any provision or application of this Agreement be declared illegal by any Court of competent Jurisdiction, such provision shall immediately become null and void, leaving the remainder of the Agreement in full force and effect and the parties shall thereupon seek to negotiate substitute provisions which are in conformity with applicable law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partie day of, 2020.	es hereto have set their hands and seals this
Dated: Agust 18, 20 20	BEW Local 400 Palent N. S. R. President Busines Manager
Dated: Augus 4 18, 2020	IBEW Local 400 Reforesentative
Dated: August 6, 2020	Borough of Matawan Oseph Altomote Myyor Joseph Altomote
Dated: August 6. 2020	Borough of Matawan Accept Dynne, RMC Municipal Cierk

Exhibit A SALARY GUIDES TO BE ADDED

YEAR	2020		2021		2022
		1.5%		1.5%	
PORTER	41,500.00	622.50	42,122.50	631.84	42,754.34
STARTING	43,750.00	656.25	44,406.25	60.999	45,072.34
2	45,750.00	686.25	46,436.25	696,54	47,132.79
3	47,750.00	716.25	48,466.25	726.99	49,193.24
4	49,750.00	746.25	50,496.25	757.44	51,253.69
5	51,750.00	776.25	52,526.25	787.89	53,314.14
		1.5%		1.5%	
9	53,750.00	806.25	54,556.25	818.34	55,374.59
7	55,750.00	836.25	56,586.25	848.79	57,435.04
83	57,750.00	866.25	58,616.25	879.24	59,495.49
6	59,750.00	896.25	60,646.25	909.69	61,555.94
10	62,000.00	930.00	62,930.00	943.95	63,873.95
		1.5%		1.5%	
11	64,000.00	960.00	64,960.00	974.40	65,934.40
12	66,000.00	990.00	00.066,99	1,004.85	67,994.85
13	68,000.00	1,020.00	69,020.00	1,035.30	70,055.30
14	70,000.00	1,050.00	71,050.00	1,065.75	72,115.75
15	72,000.00	1,080.00	73,080.00	1,096.20	74,176.20
		1.5%		1.5%	
ASST FOREM	73,250.00	1,098.75	74,348.75	1,115.23	75,463.98